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in the public interest. Tier One civil 
money penalties may be assessed pur-
suant to 15 U.S.C. 78u–2(b)(1) in an 
amount not to exceed $5,500 for a nat-
ural person or $60,000 for any other per-
son for violations set forth in 15 U.S.C. 
78u–2(a). Tier Two civil money pen-
alties may be assessed pursuant to 15 
U.S.C. 78u–2(b)(2) in an amount not to 
exceed—for each violation set forth in 
15 U.S.C. 78u–2(a)—$60,000 for a natural 
person or $300,000 for any other person 
if the act or omission involved fraud, 
deceit, manipulation, or deliberate or 
reckless disregard of a regulatory re-
quirement. Tier Three civil money pen-
alties may be assessed pursuant to 15 
U.S.C. 78u–2(b)(3) for each violation set 
forth in 15 U.S.C. 78u–2(a), in an 
amount not to exceed $120,000 for a nat-
ural person or $575,000 for any other 
person, if the act or omission involved 
fraud, deceit, manipulation, or delib-
erate or reckless disregard of a regu-
latory requirement; and such act or 
omission directly or indirectly resulted 
in substantial losses, or created a sig-
nificant risk of substantial losses to 
other persons or resulted in substantial 
pecuniary gain to the person who com-
mitted the act or omission. 

(xv) Civil money penalties assessed 
for false claims and statements pursu-
ant to the Program Fraud Civil Rem-
edies Act. Pursuant to the Program 
Fraud Civil Remedies Act (31 U.S.C. 
3802), civil money penalties of not more 
than $5,500 per claim or statement may 
be assessed for violations involving 
false claims and statements. 

(xvi) Civil money penalties assessed for 
violations of the Flood Disaster Protection 
Act. Pursuant to the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act (FDPA)(42 U.S.C. 
4012a(f)), civil money penalties may be 
assessed against any regulated lending 
institution that engages in a pattern or 
practice of violations of the FDPA in 
an amount not to exceed $350 per viola-
tion, and not to exceed a total of 
$115,000 annually. 

[56 FR 37975, Aug. 9, 1991, as amended at 61 
FR 57991, Nov. 12, 1996; 64 FR 62100, Nov. 16, 
1999; 65 FR 64887, Oct. 31, 2000; 66 FR 9189, 
Feb. 7, 2001]

§ 308.133 Effective date of, and pay-
ment under, an order to pay. 

(a) Effective date. (1) Unless otherwise 
provided in the Notice, except in situa-
tions covered by paragraph (a)(2) of 
this section, civil penalties assessed 
pursuant to this subpart are due and 
payable 60 days after the Notice is 
served upon the respondent. 

(2) If the respondent both requests a 
hearing and serves an answer, civil 
penalties assessed pursuant to this sub-
part are due and payable 60 days after 
an order to pay, issued after the hear-
ing or upon default, is served upon the 
respondent, unless the order provides 
for a different period of payment. Civil 
penalties assessed pursuant to an order 
to pay issued upon consent are due and 
payable within the time specified 
therein. 

(b) Payment. All penalties collected 
under this section shall be paid over to 
the Treasury of the United States.

Subpart I—Rules and Procedures 
for Imposition of Sanctions 
Upon Municipal Securities 
Dealers or Persons Associated 
With Them and Clearing 
Agencies or Transfer Agents

§ 308.134 Scope. 

The rules and procedures in this sub-
part, subpart B of the Local Rules and 
the Uniform Rules shall apply to pro-
ceedings by the Board of Directors or 
its designee: 

(a) To censure, limit the activities of, 
suspend, or revoke the registration of, 
any municipal securities dealer for 
which the FDIC is the appropriate reg-
ulatory agency; 

(b) To censure, suspend, or bar from 
being associated with such a municipal 
securities dealer, any person associated 
with such a municipal securities deal-
er; and 

(c) To deny registration, to censure 
limit the activities of, suspend, or re-
voke the registration of, any transfer 
agent or clearing agency for which the 
FDIC is the appropriate regulatory 
agency. This subpart and the Uniform 
Rules shall not apply to proceedings to 
postpone or suspend registration of a 
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transfer agent or clearing agency pend-
ing final determination of denial or 
revocation of registration.

§ 308.135 Grounds for imposition of 
sanctions. 

(a) Action under section 15(b)(4) of the 
Exchange Act. The Board of Directors 
or its designee may issue and have 
served upon any municipal securities 
dealer for which the FDIC is the appro-
priate regulatory agency, or any per-
son associated or seeking to become as-
sociated with a municipal securities 
dealer for which the FDIC is the appro-
priate regulatory agency, a written no-
tice of its intention to censure, limit 
the activities or functions or oper-
ations of, suspend, or revoke the reg-
istration of, such municipal securities 
dealer, or to censure, suspend, or bar 
the person from being associated with 
the municipal securities dealer, when 
the Board of Directors or its designee 
determines: 

(1) That such municipal securities 
dealer or such person 

(i) Has committed any prohibited act 
or omitted any required act specified 
in subparagraph (A), (D), or (E) of sec-
tion 15(b)(4) of the Exchange Act, as 
amended (15 U.S.C. 78o); 

(ii) Has been convicted of any offense 
specified in section 15(b)(4)(B) of the 
Exchange Act within ten years of com-
mencement of proceedings under this 
subpart; or 

(iii) Is enjoined from any act, con-
duct, or practice specified in section 
15(b)(4)(C) of the Exchange Act; and 

(2) That it is in the public interest to 
impose any of the sanctions set forth 
in paragraph (a) of this section. 

(b) Action under sections 17 and 17A of 
the Exchange Act. The Board of Direc-
tors or its designee may issue, and 
have served upon any transfer agent or 
clearing agency for which the FDIC is 
the appropriate regulatory agency, a 
written Notice of its intention to deny 
registration to, censure, place limita-
tions on the activities or function or 
operations of, suspend, or revoke the 
registration of, the transfer agent or 
clearing agency, when the Board of Di-
rectors or its designee determines: 

(1) That the transfer agent or clear-
ing agency has willfully violated, or is 
unable to comply with, any applicable 

provision of section 17 or 17A of the Ex-
change Act, as amended, or any appli-
cable rule or regulation issued pursu-
ant thereto; and 

(2) That it is in the public interest to 
impose any of the sanctions set forth 
in paragraph (b) of this section.

§ 308.136 Notice to and consultation 
with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

Before initiating any proceedings 
under § 308.135, the FDIC shall: 

(a) Notify the Securities and Ex-
change Commission of the identity of 
the municipal securities dealer or asso-
ciated person against whom pro-
ceedings are to be initiated, and the 
nature of and basis for the proposed ac-
tion; and 

(b) Consult with the Commission con-
cerning the effect of the proposed ac-
tion on the protection of investors and 
the possibility of coordinating the ac-
tion with any proceeding by the Com-
mission against the municipal securi-
ties dealer or associated person.

§ 308.137 Effective date of order impos-
ing sanctions. 

An order issued by the Board of Di-
rectors after a hearing or an order 
issued upon default shall become effec-
tive at the expiration of 30 days after 
the service of the order, except that an 
order of censure, denial, or revocation 
of registration is effective when served. 
An order issued upon consent shall be-
come effective at the time specified 
therein. All orders shall remain effec-
tive and enforceable except to the ex-
tent they are stayed, modified, termi-
nated, or set aside by the Board of Di-
rectors, its designee, or a reviewing 
court, provided that orders of suspen-
sion shall continue in effect no longer 
than 12 months.

Subpart J—Rules and Procedures 
Relating to Exemption Pro-
ceedings Under Section 12(h) 
of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934

§ 308.138 Scope. 
The rules and procedures of this sub-

part J shall apply to proceedings by 
the Board of Directors or its designee 
to exempt, in whole or in part, an 
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